
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK 
 Community Development District 

 
November 16, 2022 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Isles of Bartram Park 
 Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL  32092 

Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 
 
 
November 9, 2022 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Board of Supervisors is 
scheduled for Wednesday, November 16, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. at the Offices of GMS, 
475 West Town Place, Suite114, St. Augustine, FL 32092.  
 
Following is the advance agenda for this meeting:  
 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comment 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the August 17, 2022, Meeting 
 
 IV. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics for Pond Maintenance  
  Services 
 
 V. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics for Fountain  
  Maintenance Services 
 
 VI. Ratification of Engagement Letter for FY 22 Audit Services with Grau &  
  Associates 
 
 VII.  Other Business 
 
 VIII. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 
 

B. Engineer 
     

C. Manager 
     
      IX. Supervisors’ Requests 
 
 X. Audience Comments 



 2 

 
 XI. Financial Reports 

A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2022, and Statement of Revenues &  
 Expenditures 

  
   B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 

C. Approval of Check Register 
 

D. Consideration of Funding Request No. 38 
 

 XII. Next Scheduled Meeting – February 15, 2022 @ 10:00 a.m. at The Offices of  
  GMS, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL 32092. 

 
 XIII. Adjournment    
     



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Isles of Bartram Park Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, August 17, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at the Renaissance 

World Golf Village Hotel, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Zenzi Rogers Chairperson  
 Chris Mayo Vice Chairman 
 Joe Panchula Supervisor 
 Michael Della Penta Supervisor 
 
 
 Also present were:  
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel  
 Nancy Brown Supervisor-elect 
 Joe Zemel Supervisor-elect  
  
  
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Four Board members were present 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication 

 Mr. Oliver stated the meeting was advertised in the St. Augustine Record on July 22nd and 

July 29th. He noted that mailed notices were sent to notify residents of the budget hearing today.  

  

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment 

 Mr. Oliver stated that this was the time for any audience members to comment on anything 

within the agenda and also for the budget hearing. Hearing none, the next item was followed.  



August 17, 2022 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the May 18, 2022 
Meeting   

 Mr. Oliver presented the minutes of the May 18, 2022 meeting and there were no additions, 

corrections, or deletions.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the May 18, 2022 Meeting, were approved.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2022-05, 
Amending the Location of Public Hearing to 
Adopt FY 2023 Budget 

 Mr. Oliver stated the resolution is for amending the budget hearing for a new location. He 

added it was moved to this meeting date and location for providing for a larger venue to 

accommodate a larger audience.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2022-05, Amending the Location of Public 
Hearing to Adopt the FY 2023 Budget, was approved. 

   

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Overview of Approved Fiscal Year 2023 
 Mr. Oliver presented an overview of the Fiscal Year 2023 budget. He noted it is not a 

significant budget change. He pointed out the capital reserve fund contribution is budgeted at 

$50,000. Growing the capital fund will provide for the next Board to have funds available for 

repair and replacement of capital assets needed such as irrigation, pumps and fountains. He stated 

the assessment table reflects 635 units are all assessed the same. The gross annual assessment 

increase is $84. He added if residents pay their tax bill by November 30th, there is a 4% discount.  

  

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing 
A. Consideration of Resolution 2022-06, Relating to Annual Appropriations and 

Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2023 
 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to open the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 



August 17, 2022 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

3 

 Mr. Oliver asked for questions from the public on the budget. One member of the audience 

asked about specifics of lake maintenance being covered in the budget increase. Mr. Oliver 

responded that yes and that two proposals fall within the budget and the other is almost twice the 

budget available.  

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to close the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 

 Mr. Haber reviewed Resolution 2022-06 that formally adopts the budget. He noted the 

Board had previously adopted a resolution approving a proposed budget, St. Johns County 

reviewed the resolution, and notices were published in the paper on the hearing. He added the 

budget was provided to the Board for review. This will adopt the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget in 

final form.  The 2022/2023 budget year is Ocober 1, 2022 – September 30, 2023.  He explained 

what is included in the budget and that amendments are included in the approval.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2022-06, Relating to Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for the Fiscal Year 2023, was approved. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2022-07, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023  

 Mr. Haber presented the next resolution. He noted the method of funding is the allocation 

of O&M assessments. He noted the adoption will levy the assessments and will certify assessment 

for collection. He added these will be forwarded to St. Johns County and the combined amount 

will be included on each homeowner’s tax bill they will receive in November.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2022-07, Imposing Special Assessment and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023, was approved. 

  

  



August 17, 2022 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

4 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Lake Maintenance 
Proposals 

 Mr. Oliver stated the current provider is Lake Doctors with an annual cost of $20,000/year 

that doesn’t include contingencies. He added $25,800 was budgeted for this cost. He reviewed the 

proposals noting they were from First Choice Aquatics for $14,160/year, Solitude Lake 

Management for $24,637/year, and Charles Aquatics for $48,372/year. The proposals were 

reviewed by Scott Forshey-Friedman, and rankings were provided with a first choice of First 

Choice Aquatics, second choice for Solitude and third choice at Charles Aquatics. Mr. Oliver 

stated the Board could continue with Lake Doctors or select one of the vendor proposals. Ms. 

Rogers asked if Mr. Oliver had worked with First Choice. He responded he had not.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Proposal for First Choice Aquatics, was approved. 

 

 Mr. Oliver stated a motion was needed to terminate the agreement with Lake Doctors.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, to Terminate the Agreement with Lake Doctors, was 
approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

  

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

 Mr. Haber had nothing further to report. 

 

B. Engineer – Presentation of Annual Engineers’ Report 
 Mr. Oliver presented the Annual Engineer’s Report that is required by state statutes. He 

noted the report stated the inspection was conducted and found them in good repair and working 

conditions and there was no recommendation for maintenance or repair. He added this will be filed 

with the State of Florida.  

 



August 17, 2022 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Engineer’s Report, was approved. 

 

C. Manager – Consideration of Proposed FY 23 Meeting Schedule  
  Mr. Oliver stated an annual meeting schedule is required each year for adoption. He 

suggested the current schedule which is the 3rd Wednesday at 10:00 on the following months: 

November 16th, February 15th, May 17th, and August 16th.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Proposal for the FY 23 Meeting Schedule, was approved. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors’ Requests 

 The Board had no Supervisor requests.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being no public present, the next item followed.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of July 31, 2022 and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

 Mr. Oliver stated that included in the agenda package is a copy of the financial reports 

through July 31, 2022. He noted the end of the fiscal year will end on September 30th and they will 

start the process of having the audit conducted which is required.  

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  Mr. Oliver noted that the assessment receipt schedule shows they are 100% collected. 

 

C. Approval of Check Register 
 Mr. Oliver stated that included in the agenda package is a check register. The Board had 

no questions.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Check Register, was approved. 

 

  



August 17, 2022 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

6 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – TBD 
 Mr. Oliver stated the next scheduled meeting will be November 16, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at 

the offices of GMS.  

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Rogers seconded by Mr. Mayo, with all in 
favor, the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. FOR POND 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 20th day of September, 
2022, by and between: 
 

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and 
 
First Choice Aquatics, Inc., a Florida corporation, whose address is 11258 
Emuness Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32218 (hereinafter "Contractor", together 
with District the “Parties”).  
  

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes ("Act"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains 12 ponds within the boundaries of 
the District (“Facilities”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor 
to provide pond maintenance services for the Facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide 
pond maintenance maintenance services and has agreed to provide to the District those services 
identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein (“Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.   The recitals so stated are true and correct 
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2.   DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



2 
 

 
  A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional pond 
maintenance services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. 
 
  B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may 
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all 
aspects to assure completion of the Services. 
  
  C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
 
  D.  This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are 
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 
        
 SECTION 3. SCOPE OF POND MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The Contractor will provide 
pond maintenance services for the 12 ponds within the District. The duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor necessary for the 
Services attached as Exhibit A. To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in 
conflict with the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls. 
     
 SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as 
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this 
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by 
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor.  All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards.  The performance of the Services by the Contractor 
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions 
issued by the District. 
  
 A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this 
Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of 
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if 
described and delineated in this Agreement. 
 
 B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any 
work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized representative 
of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 
 C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s representative 
with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement.  The District’s representative 
shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the 
District’s policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems 
pertinent to the Contractor’s services. 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



3 
 

  
  (1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its 

representative. 
 

  (2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet with 
the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss conditions, schedules, and items 
of concern regarding this Agreement. 

 
 D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, 
and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.  
 
 SECTION 5. COMPENSATION; TERM.   
 
 A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District agrees 
to pay the Contractor One Thousand One Hundred Eighteen Dollars ($1,118.00) for the initial 
treatment, then One Thousand One Hundred Eighteen Dollars ($1,118.00) per month.  The term 
of this Agreement shall be from October 20, 2022 through October 19, 2023 unless terminated 
earlier by either party in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  

 
 B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional areas 
to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional 
work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an, addendum, 
addenda, or change order to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed 
additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to 
in writing. 

 
 C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, 
in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those 
subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide 
an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, the District shall have the right 
to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a 
form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the  
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of 
employees. 

 
 D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.  
As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall invoice the 
District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the Contractor. 
The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date. The 
Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder is 
not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such 
supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



4 
 

 
 SECTION 4. INSURANCE. 
 
 A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida. 

  
(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal 

liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property 

damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation. 
 

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing 
coverage for any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or 
use by the Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other 
equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as additional 

insured.  The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it 
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as 
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.  
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the 
State of Florida. 
 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the 
District has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the 
Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all 
information that may be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 
 
 SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 

agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, 
damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether 
monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the 
Services to be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



5 
 

connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, 
or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, nothing in this Agreement 
requires Contractor to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the 
District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and 
Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for 
any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, 
regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.  
 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, 
expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against 
the District. 

 
 SECTION 9. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability 
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  
 
 SECTION 6. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall 
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 7. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or 
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason 
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately 
discharge any such claim or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such 
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition 
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be 
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



6 
 

or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 9. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 10. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 11. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately 
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide 
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up 
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District 
may have against the Contractor.   
 
 SECTION 12. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any 
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor 
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning 
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or 
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



7 
 

the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 15. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  A default by either Party under this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity.  In the event 
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings 
or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 17. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
None of the provisions of Exhibit A shall apply to this Agreement and Exhibit A shall not be 
incorporated herein, except that Exhibit A is applicable to the extent that it states the scope of 
services for the labor and materials to be provided under this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 
 
 SECTION 19. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notice” or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Isles of Bartram Park Community  
      Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
Attn:  District Manager 

 
With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 

      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  First Choice Aquatics, Inc. 
11258 Emuness Road 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



8 
 

Jacksonville, Florida 32218 
Attn: _____________________ 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 22. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 23. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the 
District is Jim Oliver (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District 
to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with 
the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable 
time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) 
ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the 
Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the 
District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain 
and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When 
such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



9 
 

public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 904-940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, AND 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, 
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092. 

 
 SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 25. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 26. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall 
be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as 
an original signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an 
original signature, electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original 
signature, or signatures created in a digital format.  
 
 SECTION 27. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida 
Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. 
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief 
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida Statutes.  By entering into 
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately 
preceding the date of this Agreement.                             
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
  

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on 
the day and year first written above. 
 
 
      ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
  
         

ATTEST:       FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. 
       
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      By:  ____________________________________ 
      Its:   _____________________________________  
       

_______________________ 
Exhibit A:  Proposal 
  

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��

����

�����	����
��



11 
 

Exhibit A 

 
  

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



12 
 

 
  

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



13 
 

 

��������������������������������������������	
�
����
��



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. FOR FOUNTAIN 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 27th day of October, 2022, 
by and between: 
 

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and 
 
First Choice Aquatics, Inc., a Florida corporation, whose address is 14289 Denton 
Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32226 (hereinafter "Contractor", together with District 
the “Parties”).  
  

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes ("Act"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains four fountains within the boundaries 
of the District (“Facilities”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor 
to provide fountain maintenance services for the Facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide 
fountain maintenance maintenance services and has agreed to provide to the District those services 
identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein (“Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.   The recitals so stated are true and correct 
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2.   DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 



2 
 

 
  A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional fountain 
maintenance services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. 
 
  B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may 
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all 
aspects to assure completion of the Services. 
  
  C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
 
  D.  This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are 
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 
        
 SECTION 3. SCOPE OF FOUNTAIN MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The Contractor will 
provide fountain maintenance services for the four fountains within the District. The duties, 
obligations, and responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor 
necessary for the Services attached as Exhibit A. To the extent any of the provisions of this 
Agreement are in conflict with the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls. 
     
 SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as 
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this 
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by 
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor.  All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards.  The performance of the Services by the Contractor 
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions 
issued by the District. 
  
 A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this 
Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of 
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if 
described and delineated in this Agreement. 
 
 B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any 
work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized representative 
of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 
 C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s representative 
with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement.  The District’s representative 
shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the 
District’s policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems 
pertinent to the Contractor’s services. 



3 
 

  
  (1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its 

representative. 
 

  (2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet with 
the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss conditions, schedules, and items 
of concern regarding this Agreement. 

 
 D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, 
and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.  
 
 SECTION 5. COMPENSATION; TERM.   
 
 A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District agrees 
to pay the Contractor Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) every four months, for a total of One 
Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($1,600.00) per year.  The term of this Agreement shall be from 
November 1, 2022 through October 31, 2023 unless terminated earlier by either party in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  

 
 B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional areas 
to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional 
work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an, addendum, 
addenda, or change order to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed 
additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to 
in writing. 

 
 C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, 
in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those 
subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide 
an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, the District shall have the right 
to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a 
form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the  
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of 
employees. 

 
 D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.  
As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall invoice the 
District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the Contractor. 
The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date. The 
Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder is 
not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such 
supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 



4 
 

 
 SECTION 4. INSURANCE. 
 
 A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida. 

  
(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal 

liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property 

damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation. 
 

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing 
coverage for any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or 
use by the Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other 
equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as additional 

insured.  The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it 
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as 
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.  
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the 
State of Florida. 
 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the 
District has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the 
Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all 
information that may be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 
 
 SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 

agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, 
damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether 
monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the 
Services to be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 



5 
 

connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, 
or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, nothing in this Agreement 
requires Contractor to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the 
District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and 
Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for 
any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, 
regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.  
 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, 
expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against 
the District. 

 
 SECTION 9. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability 
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  
 
 SECTION 6. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall 
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 7. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or 
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason 
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately 
discharge any such claim or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such 
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition 
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be 
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 



6 
 

or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 9. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 10. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 11. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately 
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide 
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up 
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District 
may have against the Contractor.   
 
 SECTION 12. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any 
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor 
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning 
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or 
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent 



7 
 

the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 15. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  A default by either Party under this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity.  In the event 
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings 
or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 17. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
None of the provisions of Exhibit A shall apply to this Agreement and Exhibit A shall not be 
incorporated herein, except that Exhibit A is applicable to the extent that it states the scope of 
services for the labor and materials to be provided under this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 
 
 SECTION 19. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notice” or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Isles of Bartram Park Community  
      Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
Attn:  District Manager 

 
With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 

      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  First Choice Aquatics, Inc. 
14289 Denton Road 



8 
 

Jacksonville, Florida 32226 
Attn: _____________________ 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 22. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 23. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the 
District is Jim Oliver (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District 
to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with 
the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable 
time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) 
ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the 
Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the 
District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain 
and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When 
such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate 



9 
 

public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 904-940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, AND 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, 
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092. 

 
 SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 25. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 26. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall 
be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as 
an original signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an 
original signature, electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original 
signature, or signatures created in a digital format.  
 
 SECTION 27. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida 
Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. 
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief 
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida Statutes.  By entering into 
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately 
preceding the date of this Agreement.                             
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
  



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on 
the day and year first written above. 
 
 
      ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
  
         

ATTEST:       FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. 
       
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      By:  ____________________________________ 
      Its:   _____________________________________  
       

_______________________ 
Exhibit A:  Proposal 
  



11 
 

Exhibit A 
 



12 
 

 



13 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



as of
September 30, 2022

Isles of Bartram Park

Unaudited Financial Statements

Community Development District



Table of Contents

I.

II.

III.

Financial Statements -  Unaudited Financial Reporting

Special Assessments Report 

Check Registers Summary -7/1/2022 -9/30/2022



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet

September 30, 2022

Total Governmental
General Debt Service Funds

Assets:

Cash $91,796 --- $91,796

Investments:

Series 2015:

Reserve --- $218,828 $218,828

Interest --- $10 $10

Revenue --- $289,405 $289,405

Sinking Fund --- $114 $114

Prepayment --- $6 $6

General Redemption --- $1,286 $1,286

Optional Redepmtion --- $7 $7

Series 2017:

Reserve --- $170,359 $170,359

Interest --- $496 $496

Revenue --- $232,659 $232,659

Sinking --- $0 $0

General Redemption --- $616 $616

Optional Redepmtion --- $2 $2

Prepayment --- $2,026 $2,026

Due From Developer $900 --- $900

Prepaid Expenses $9,693 --- $9,693

Total Assets $102,389 $915,814 $1,018,203

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $3,873 --- $3,873

Accrued Expenses $5,790 --- $5,790

Total Liabilities $9,663 $0 $9,663

Fund Balances:

Restricted for Debt Service --- $915,814 $915,814

Nonspendable $9,693 --- $9,693

Unassigned $83,033 --- $83,033

Total Fund Balances $92,726 $915,814 $1,008,540

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity $102,389 $915,814 $1,018,203

1



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual

Budget 9/30/22 9/30/22 Variance

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll $237,023 $237,023 $237,502 $479
Developer Contribution $0 $0 $15,410 $15,410

Total Revenues $237,023 $237,023 $252,912 $15,889

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors $4,000 $4,000 $3,600 $400
FICA Expense $306 $306 $275 $31
Engineering $6,000 $6,000 $4,784 $1,216
Dissemination $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $0
Arbitrage $1,200 $1,200 $3,600 ($2,400)
Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Attorney Fees $10,000 $10,000 $4,454 $5,546
Annual Audit $4,200 $4,200 $3,800 $400
Trustee Fees $8,000 $8,000 $11,333 ($3,333)
Management Fees $46,800 $46,800 $46,800 $0
Information Technology $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0
Website Maintenance $800 $800 $800 ($0)
Telephone $150 $150 $23 $127
Postage $300 $300 $661 ($361)
Insurance $9,292 $9,292 $8,957 $335
Printing and Binding $1,300 $1,300 $872 $428
Legal Advertising $2,000 $2,000 $1,083 $917
Other Current Charges $500 $500 $1,048 ($548)
Office Supplies $200 $200 $25 $175
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

Total Administrative $108,423 $108,423 $105,489 $2,934

FIELD:

Landscape Maintenance $57,800 $57,800 $53,116 $4,684
Lake Maintenance $25,800 $25,800 $22,540 $3,260
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance $6,600 $6,600 $8,451 ($1,851)
Lake Fountains Maintenance $11,400 $11,400 $6,818 $4,582
Facility Management $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $0
Utilities $20,000 $20,000 $5,518 $14,482
General Maintenance $1,000 $1,000 $2,050 ($1,050)

Total Field $128,600 $128,600 $104,492 $24,108

Total Expenditures $237,023 $237,023 $209,981 $27,042

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $0 $42,931

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $49,795

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $92,726

For the Period ending September 30, 2022

2



11
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP Total

Revenues:

Assessment - Tax Roll $7,092 $37,007 $45,974 $139,358 $2,822 $1,225 $2,344 $0 $1,679 $0 $0 $0 $237,502
Developer Contribution $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,510 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $900 $15,410

Total Revenues $7,092 $37,007 $45,974 $139,358 $17,332 $1,225 $2,344 $0 $1,679 $0 $0 $900 $252,912

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisors $0 $800 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $800 $0 $3,600
FICA Expense $0 $61 $0 $0 $77 $0 $0 $77 $0 $0 $61 $0 $275
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $731 $113 $0 $1,519 $1,409 $0 $506 $0 $506 $4,784
Dissemination $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $7,000
Arbitrage $600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000 $0 $3,600
Assessment Roll $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Attorney Fees $0 $376 $0 $1,360 $673 $473 $0 $911 $130 $0 $461 $71 $4,454
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,800
Trustee Fees $3,333 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $11,333
Management Fees $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $46,800
Information Technology $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $1,200
Website Maintenance $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $67 $800
Telephone $2 $6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $23
Postage $2 $9 $105 $18 $19 $18 $25 $49 $29 $376 $3 $7 $661
Insurance $8,957 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,957
Printing and Binding $21 $0 $122 $0 $8 $136 $5 $5 $9 $486 $2 $77 $872
Legal Advertising $0 $61 $0 $0 $73 $0 $0 $159 $0 $791 $0 $0 $1,083
Other Current Charges $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350 $0 $35 $0 $563 $0 $1,048
Office Supplies $0 $0 $21 $0 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 $0 $0 $25
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $22,841 $9,964 $4,898 $6,759 $6,612 $9,077 $6,557 $8,260 $4,854 $6,817 $13,539 $5,312 $105,489

Field
Landscape Maintenance $4,709 $2,670 $5,111 $2,750 $2,750 $5,074 $10,608 $6,124 $2,750 $2,750 $3,036 $4,785 $53,116
Lake Maintenance $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $3,270 $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $1,670 $2,570 $22,540
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance $1,129 $680 $217 $1,132 $224 $701 $702 $712 $722 $450 $662 $1,120 $8,451
Lake Fountains Maintenance $350 $415 $5,023 $350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $330 $350 $0 $0 $6,818.00
Management $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $6,000
Utilities $1,252 $1,246 $987 $276 $650 $668 $439 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,518.27
General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,050 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,050

Total Field $9,609 $7,180 $13,508 $8,278 $5,793 $8,614 $15,969 $9,006 $5,972 $5,720 $5,868 $8,976 $104,492

Total Expenses $32,450 $17,144 $18,406 $15,037 $12,406 $17,690 $22,526 $17,266 $10,826 $12,536 $19,406 $14,287 $209,981

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($25,358) $19,863 $27,569 $124,321 $4,927 ($16,466) ($20,182) ($17,266) ($9,147) ($12,536) ($19,406) ($13,387) $42,931

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

General Fund
Month By Month Income Statement

Fiscal Year 2022

3



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2022

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
	Budget 9/30/22 9/30/22 Variance

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll $432,170 $432,170 $430,638 ($1,532)
Interest Income $50 $50 $2,301 $2,251

Total Revenues $432,220 $432,220 $432,940 $720

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Interest Expense - 11/01 $150,841 $150,841 $150,841 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 $115,000 $115,000 $115,000 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 Prepayment $32,000 $32,000 $20,000 $12,000
Interest Expense - 05/01 $148,325 $148,325 $147,819 $506
Principal Expense - 05/01 Prepayment $0 $0 $85,000 ($85,000)

Total Expenditures $446,166 $446,166 $518,659 ($72,494)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Transfer In and (Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Other Sources and Uses $0 $0 $0 $0

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($13,946) ($85,720)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $371,502 $595,374

FUND BALANCE - Ending $357,556 $509,655

4



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund Series 2017
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2022

Adopted Prorated Actual
	Budget 9/30/22 9/30/22 Variance

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll $341,479 $341,479 $342,199 $720
Interest Income $35 $35 $1,819 $1,784

Total Revenues $341,514 $341,514 $344,018 $2,504

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Interest Expense - 11/01 $118,813 $118,813 $118,813 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/01 $117,063 $117,063 $117,063 $0
Principal Expense - 5/01 Prepayment $0 $0 $15,000 ($15,000)

Total Expenditures $335,875 $335,875 $350,875 ($15,000)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Other Sources and Uses $0 $0 $0 $0

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $5,639 ($6,857)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $238,817 $413,016

FUND BALANCE - Ending $244,456 $406,159

5



Series 2015 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 4.375%-5.125%
Maturity Date: 11/1/45
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $218,893.13
Reserve Balance: $218,827.68

Bonds outstanding - 11/30/2015 $6,725,000
Less:  November 1, 2015 $0
Less:  November 1, 2016 ($110,000)
Less:  November 1, 2017 ($130,000)
Less:  May 1, 2018 (Prepayment) ($100,000)
Less:  November 1, 2018 ($100,000)
Less:  May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 ($105,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  November 1, 2020 ($110,000)
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 ($115,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($85,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $5,810,000

Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 3.50%-5.00%
Maturity Date: 11/1/47
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $170,922.80
Reserve Balance: $170,359.37

Bonds outstanding - 11/30/2017 $5,345,000
Less:  November 1, 2018 ($50,000)
Less:  May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($25,000)
Less:  August 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 ($95,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  November 1, 2020 ($100,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 ($100,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($15,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $4,940,000

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT FY 22

SERVICE SERVICE O&M
ASSESSED TO # LOTS ASMT ASMT ASMT TOTAL ASMTS

STANDARD PACIFIC OF FLORIDA 19 - - 7,091.94     7,091.94            
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES NET 19 - - 7,091.94     7,091.94            

TAX ROLL NET 616 429,732.19       341,479.08       229,925.20 1,001,136.47     

TOTAL DISTRICT NET 616 429732.19 341479.08 237,017.14 1,001,136.47     

SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT

SERVICE SERVICE O&M TOTAL 
RECEIVE FROM BALANCE DUE RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED

STANDARD PACIFIC OF FLORIDA - - - 7,091.94     7,091.94            
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES - - - 7,091.94     7,091.94            

TAX ROLL RECEIVED / DUE (2,110.89)        430,638.28       342,199.09       230,410.00 1,003,247.36     

TOTAL RECEIPTS / DUE (2,110.89)        430,638.28       342,199.09       237,501.94 1,010,339.30     

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT

ST JOHNS COUNTY SERVICE SERVICE FY20 O&M TOTAL 
DISTRIBUTION DATE ASMT ASMT ASMT RECEIVED

1 11/4/2021 - - - - 

2 11/17/2021 13,059.33         10,377.36         6,987.30     30,423.99          

3 11/22/2021 56,106.63         44,584.14         30,019.46   130,710.24        

4 12/9/2021 37,940.43         30,148.69         20,299.76   88,388.88          

5 12/20/2022 47,986.09         38,131.29         25,674.62   111,792.00        

6 1/14/2022 260,456.43       206,967.09       139,355.39 606,778.91        

INTEREST 1/21/2022 5.45 4.33 2.92            12.70 

7 2/16/2022 5,275.13           4,191.79           2,822.42     12,289.34          

8 3/7/2022 2,288.89           1,818.83           1,224.66     5,332.38            

9 4/7/2022 4,381.51           3,481.69           2,344.30     10,207.50          

10 6/21/2022 1,560.79           1,240.26           835.09        3,636.14            

TAX CERTS 6/16/2022 1,577.59           1,253.61           844.08        3,675.28            

- - - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 430,638.28       342,199.09       230,410.00 1,003,247.36     

PERCENT COLLECTED DIRECT 100% 100% 100% 100%
PERCENT COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100% 100% 100% 100%
PERCENT COLLECTED TOTAL 0% 0% 0% 0%

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Fiscal Year 2022 Assessment Receipts

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Fund Date Check No. Amount  

Payroll 8/18/22 50060-50063 $738.80

Sub-Total $738.80

General Fund

Accounts Payable 7/1/22-7/31/22 853-859 $9,671.40
8/1/22- 8/31/22 860-872 $24,138.91
9/1/22-9/30/22 873-877 $18,527.46

Sub-Total $52,337.77

Total  53,076.57$             

* Fedex Invoices available upon request

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Check Run Summary
7/01/22 - 9/30/22



 BR040M-A              CHECKS WRITTEN LISTING               AS OF  8/31/2022           RUN 11/07/2022     PAGE    1
 CMPY-001 ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL     BANK-P    ISLES OF BARTRAM

CHECK#    TYPE    SYSTEM    CHECK DATE       CHECK AMT    EMP/CUS/VEN#    DESCRIPTION

050060      R       PR      08/18/2022          184.70              3     CHRIS MAYO
050061      R       PR      08/18/2022          184.70              2     JOSEPH PANCHULA
050062      R       PR      08/18/2022          184.70              5     MICHAEL DELLA PENTA
050063      R       PR      08/18/2022          184.70              1     ZENZI M ROGERS

BANK TOTAL                  738.80

COMPANY TOTAL                  738.80

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/07/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2022 - 09/30/2022 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/08/22 00021 6/01/22 M6294    202206 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00
MAY POOL CLEANING

CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000853
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/08/22 00001 7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,900.00

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-52000                                     *               66.67

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

JUL INFORMATION TECH
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

JUL DISSEM AGENT SERVICES
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .51

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-42000                                     *                7.95

POSTAGE
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-42500                                     *               19.05

COPIES
7/01/22 101      202207 310-51300-41000                                     *                6.52

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,684.03 000854

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/08/22 00020 7/01/22 671640   202207 320-57200-46300                                     *              350.00

QTRLY FOUNTAIN SERVICE
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                350.00 000855

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/22 00023 6/30/22 2023038  202206 320-57200-46400                                     *              272.11

JUN WATERFALL FTN SERVICE
INNOVATIVE FOUNTAIN SERVICES, INC                                 272.11 000856

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/22 00020 6/21/22 667196   202206 320-57200-46300                                     *              330.00

FOUNTAIN REPAIRS
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                330.00 000857

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/22 00022 7/01/22 JAX39132 202207 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,749.65

JUL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,749.65 000858

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/27/22 00034 7/25/22 144298   202207 310-51300-42500                                     *              467.31

FY23 INCRSD ASMNT MLD NTC
7/25/22 144298   202207 310-51300-42000                                     *              368.30

POSTAGE
ADVANCED DIRECT MARKETING SRVCS                                   835.61 000859

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00021 8/01/22 M6634    202207 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00

JUL POOL CLEANING
CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000860

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/07/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2022 - 09/30/2022 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/12/22 00011 7/12/22 203806   202207 310-51300-31100                                     *              506.25
JUL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

ENGLAND THIMS & MILLER INC                                        506.25 000861
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00001 8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,900.00

AUG MANAGEMENT FEES
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-52000                                     *               66.67

AUG WEBSITE ADMIN
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

AUG INFORMATION TECH
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

AUG DISSEM AGENT SERVICES
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .15

OFFICE SUPPLIES
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-42000                                     *                2.85

POSTAGE
8/01/22 102      202208 310-51300-42500                                     *                1.50

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,654.50 000862

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00029 8/10/22 08102022 202208 300-20700-10200                                     *            1,577.59

6/16/22 TAX CERTS
8/10/22 08102022 202208 300-20700-10200                                     *            1,560.79

6/21/22 TAX CERTS
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK CDD-DS 2015                               3,138.38 000863

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00030 8/10/22 08102022 202208 300-20700-10300                                     *            1,253.61

6/16/22 TAX CERTS
8/10/22 08102022 202208 300-20700-10300                                     *            1,240.26

6/21/22 TAX CERTS
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK CDD-DS 2017                               2,493.87 000864

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00020 7/01/22 670970   202207 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,670.00

JUL LAKE MANAGEMENT
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                              1,670.00 000865

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/12/22 00022 8/01/22 JAX41192 202208 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,749.65

AUG LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,749.65 000866

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/18/22 00031 6/16/22 10002    202208 310-51300-49000                                     *              187.50

AUG MTG RM-SPKR PHNE CHRG
RENAISSANCE RESORT AT THE WORLD                                   187.50 000867

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/22/22 00016 8/01/22 252-2488 202208 310-51300-33000                                     *            4,000.00

SE2017 ADMIN FEE FY23
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON                                     4,000.00 000868

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/07/22          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2022 - 09/30/2022 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/22/22 00035 7/31/22 4771596  202207 310-51300-48000                                     *              790.68
NTC OF MTG&PUB HRG7/22&29

CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS,LLC                                           790.68 000869
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/29/22 00013 8/23/22 23066    202208 310-51300-35300                                     *            3,000.00

ARB SE2017 FYE 7/31/18-22
GRAU AND ASSOCIATES                                             3,000.00 000870

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/29/22 00023 8/23/22 2023238  202208 320-57200-46400                                     *              212.08

AUG WATERFALL FTN MAINT
INNOVATIVE FOUNTAIN SERVICES, INC                                 212.08 000871

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/29/22 00022 8/22/22 JAX41679 202208 320-57200-46200                                     *              286.00

JUL IRRIG RPRS
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                             286.00 000872

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/13/22 00006 9/02/22 16622    202209 300-15500-10000                                     *            9,693.00

FY23 POLICY RENEWAL
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                     9,693.00 000873

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/13/22 00001 9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,900.00

SEP MANAGEMENT FEES
9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-52000                                     *               66.67

SEP WEBSITE ADMIN
9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

SEP INFORMATION TECH
9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

SEP DISSEM AGENT SERVICES
9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-42000                                     *                7.41

POSTAGE
9/01/22 103      202209 310-51300-42500                                     *               77.40

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,734.81 000874

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/13/22 00022 9/01/22 JAX42546 202209 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,749.65

SEP LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,749.65 000875

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/23/22 00021 9/01/22 M6775    202209 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00

SEP POOL CLEANING
CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000876

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/23/22 00020 9/02/22 1702697  202209 320-57200-46100                                     *              900.00

TRASH RMVL COMPLETED
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                900.00 000877

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 52,337.77

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/07/22          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2022 - 09/30/2022 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               52,337.77

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO















Invoice
DATE

7/25/2022

INVOICE #

144298

BILL TO

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
St Augustine, FL 32092

Advanced Direct Marketing Services
3733 Adirolf Rd.
Jacksonville, FL   32207-4719
(V) 904.396.3028  (F) 396.6328

P.O. NO. TERMS

With Order

PROJECT

E-mail jim@adm-service.com

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (7.5%)

SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Isles of Bartram Park CDD

Load, read, convert files; CASS Certify addresses to enable automation based postage
rates; Create automation based sack/tray tags & postal documents; format for laser
imaging

635 0.11811 75.00

Form layout and preparation for merge imaging 1 37.50 37.50
Laser one sheet front & back 635 0.215 136.53
Fold customer materials 635 0.04288 27.23
Customer single color #10 window envelopes 635 0.20586 130.72
Insert one piece into #10 envelope, seal, prep & deliver to BMEU JAX 635 0.095 60.33

Postage 635 0.58 368.30

$835.61

$835.61

$0.00













































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Community Development District Funding Request #38
September 8, 2022
GENERAL FUND

 PAYEE FY2022

1 The Lake Doctors
Trash removal Invoice #1702697 9/2/2022 900.00$                

Total
Total Funding Request 900.00$              

Please make check payable to: Isles of Bartram Park CDD
c/o GMS LLC
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine FL  32092

Signature:

Signature:

Isles of Bartram Park

Chairman/Vice Chairman

Secretary/Asst. Secretary



PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARDMAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO:

EXP. DATECARD NUMBER
  Po Box 20122
Tampa, FL 30622-0122
(904) 262-5500

AMOUNT PAIDSIGNATURE

BALANCEDATEACCOUNT NUMBER

ADDRESSEE
$900.009/2/2022721658Please check if address below is incorrect and indicate change on reverse side

CELESTINA MASTER POA
JIM OLIVER
200  Business Park Cir
St Johns, FL 32259

The Lake Doctors
 Po Box 20122
Tampa, FL 30622-0122

Please Return this portion with your payment00000000098457001000000003227300000009000017

SRSSBLU_1|0000000205886|1|0000000032273|4|4|false|Page 1 of 1|false|20220902141055|0
PO #1702697Invoice

$900.00 $0.00 $900.00Physical Removal - As Needed

$0.00

Quantity Tax TotalAmountDate Description

20  LUNETTE COURT, ST JOHNS, FL    ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092

9/2/2022

trash removal completed. Thank you for your patience!

Discount

$0.00Adjustment

Lic#:Account#721658 AMOUNT DUE

$900.00


	Agenda
	III.       Approval of Minutes of the August 17, 2022, Meeting 
	IV. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics for Pond Maintenance 
	V. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics for Fountain 
	VI. Ratification of Engagement Letter for FY 22 Audit Services with Grau & 
	XI. A.    Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2022, and Statement of Revenues & 
	B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	C.    Approval of Check Register
	D.    Consideration of Funding Request No. 38



